ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 3, 2004
1: 50 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto

Representative Bob Lynn

Representative N ck Stepovich
Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 28
Relating to the socioeconomc inpacts of salnmon harvesting
cooperati ves.

- MOVED HCR 28 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 522
"An Act relating to discharges from small comercial passenger
vessel s; and providing for an effective date."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 524

"An Act relating to the protection of land and water from waste
di sposal; providing for the regulation of waste nanagenent;
maki ng conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED HB 524 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 442
"An Act relating to the Big Gane Commercial Services Board and

to the regulation of big ganme hunting services and
transportation services; and providing for an effective date.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 3, 2004



- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HCR 28

SHORT TI TLE: STUDI ES OF SALMON HARVESTI NG COOPERATI VES

SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) SEATON BY REQUEST OF SALMON
| NDUSTRY TASK FORCE

01/ 28/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 28/ 04 (H) EDT, RES

02/ 12/ 04 (H EDT AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 12/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 12/ 04 (H) M NUTE( EDT)

02/ 19/ 04 (H EDT AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 19/ 04 (H M/d Qut of Conmittee w new fiscal notes
02/ 23/ 04 (H) EDT RPT 4DP

02/ 23/ 04 (H DP: MCGUI RE, Cl SSNA, CRAWORD, HEI NZE
02/ 23/ 04 (H FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER RES

03/ 01/ 04 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 01/ 04 (H Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 04 (H M NUTE( RES)

03/ 03/ 04 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 522

SHORT TI TLE: SMALL CRUI SE SHI P DI SCHARGES

SPONSOR(S): STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 26/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 04 (H) RES

03/ 03/ 04 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 524

SHORT TI TLE: WASTE MANAGEMENT/ DI SPOSAL

SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

02/ 26/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 04 (H) RES

03/ 03/ 04 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 442

SHORT TI TLE: BI G GAME GUI DE BOARD & SERVI CES

SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG BUDGET & AUDI T
02/ 09/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 04 (H) RES, FIN

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2-

March 3, 2004



02/ 20/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
02/ 20/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 20/ 04 (H M NUTE( RES)

03/ 03/ 04 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As sponsor of HCR 28, provided the
commttee with a letter addressing fiscal inpacts of the bill

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff

to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Weyhrauch, Chair of the House State Affairs Standing Commttee,
sponsor.

DAN EASTON, Director

Division of Facility Construction and Operation
Depart ment of Environmental Conservation (DEC)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 522.

CAPTAIN M CHAEL JONES (ph), Director

Mari ne Operations

Li ndbl ad Expeditions (LEX)

Seattl e, Washington

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 522 on behalf of the Al aska
Smal | Crui se Vessel Association.

BRYCE BROCKWAY, Vice President

Qper ati ons

Crui se \West

Seattl e, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 522, provided
i nformation.

CH P THOVA

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 522; suggested ways to
i nprove the bill

ERNESTA BALLARD, Conmm ssi oner

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 3, 2004



Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC)
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 524.

MARI LYN CROCKETT, Deputy Director

Al aska G| and Gas Associ ati on (AC&)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 524.

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director

Al aska M ners Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 524.

MYRL THOMPSON, QOgan is So Gone

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 524, asked questions
about exenptions relating to coal bed nethane drilling.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-11, SIDE A

Nunmber 0001

CO CHAIR NANCY DAHLSTROM called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:50 p.m Represent ati ves
Dahl strom Masek, Gatto, Heinze, WIf, and CQuttenberg were
present at the call to order. Representatives Lynn, Stepovich,

and Kerttula arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HCR 28- STUDI ES OF SALMON HARVESTI NG COOPERATI VES

Nunmber 0158

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 28, Relating to the
soci oeconom ¢ i npacts of sal non harvesting cooperatives.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM rem nded the nmenbers that at the |ast hearing
there were sonme questions related to the fiscal note. She said
she sent Representative Paul Seaton, sponsor of HCR 28, an e-
mail requesting clarification on a couple of points and copies
of that response have been provided to the nenbers. Co- Chair
Dahl strom said she believes Representative Seaton's response
[ menorandum dated March 3, 2004] was adequate and any further
questions related to financial issues are best addressed in the
next commttee of referral, the House Finance Conmttee.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 3, 2004



Number 0229

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF commented that he did not receive the e-
mai | .

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM replied that all offices were supplied with a
copy of the response this norning, but an additional copy wll
be provi ded.

The conmittee took an at-ease from1:55 p.m to 1:56 p. m
Number 0300

CO- CHAIR MASEK said that it is pretty clear that it is not the
intent of the Joint Legislative Salnon Industry Task Force
(JLSITF) or the sponsor to fund the request made in HCR 28 with
general funds. She said she believes that was the major concern
menbers had and it has now been addressed.

Number 0345
CO CHAI R MASEK noved to report HCR 28 out of the House Resources
Standing Conmmittee wth individual reconmendations and the

acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF objected. He said he has a problemw th the

University of Alaska's involvenent in the report. In the past
the socioeconomc studies that the wuniversity has done have
created concerns on both sides of the issue. Representati ve

Wl f told the nmenbers that he cannot support the resol ution.
Number 0420

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified that this resolution is HCR 28.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Heinze, Gatto,
Lynn, Stepovich, Guttenberg, Dahlstrom and Masek voted in favor
of HCR 28. Representatives Wl f voted against it. Ther ef or e,
HCR 28 was reported out of the House Resources Standing
Commttee by a vote of 7-1.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON t hanked the commttee for their efforts.

HB 522- SMALL CRU SE SHI P DI SCHARGES

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 3, 2004



CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced that the next order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO. 522, "An Act relating to discharges from
small commercial passenger vessels; and providing for an
effective date."

Number 0545

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Al aska
State Legislature, testified, and noted that HB 522 is sponsored
by the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee. She said HB 522
was brought forward by the small comercial passenger vessels.
She explained that in 2001, the legislature passed the Al aska
Commerci al Vessel Environnental Conpliance Program which was a
col |l aborative effort that was initiated by the Departnent of
Environnental Conservation (DEC), Representative Kerttula, and
the cruise ship industry itself. It was a program that was
designed to mnimze discharges into the waters of Al aska. The
program itself involved requirenents in which technol ogi es would
be brought on line and wastewater would be processed on board,
in addition, the small vessels were included in this. Thi s
included the large 3,000 passenger cruise ship vessels and the
smal l er vessels, which are defined as passenger vessels between
50 and 249 passengers.

M5. SYLVESTER said the idea behind including the snall
commercial passenger vessels was that technology would be
devel oped for processing wastewater and the technology would

filter down to the smaller vessel, which would be able to
i npl enent those and then conply with the Act. The idea didn't
exactly happen that way. There are technologies but to

i npl enent those technologies, the small passenger vessels would
be required to undergo mmjor nodifications, excess holding, or
woul d have to nodify the structure to increase the capacity for
storage of the wastewater and other reasons, which is not
practical for this group of vessels, she said. Ms. Syl vester
said the total amount of discharge from this group of boats is
about 3 percent. She said the Al aska Marine H ghways and the
smal | passenger vessels conbined is the total anount of 6
percent of wastewater in Alaska, and Alaska Marine H ghway
vessels are exenpt fromthis Act. She said this would only net
in the small vessels.

M5. SYLVESTER said the group was waiting for a report from the
DEC on how the industry has been doing and the report was that

the industry is doing very well. The |arge passenger vessels
have done a great job and Alaska is a true star in environnental
protection for its waterways, she said. The small|l vessels are

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 3, 2004



fine at sea but have troubles when in port and stationary. She
said the group got together with the departnent and worked out a
plan and decided that if the group can't be perfect and their
i npact on the environment is very mnimal, the best thing to do
would be to work towards best nanagenment practices and conme up
with a regulatory schene in which the departnment can oversee
what's going on and still protect the environnent. The bill is
the regul atory schenme. She said essentially the department wll
work with each individual operator and eventually a plan for
best nmanagenent practices would be approved for each vessel for
3 years and "they would touch bases in 3 years.” She said the
idea is that the departnent would have latitude to nmake
determ nations if there is technology that cones on line, and in
its discretion, the departnent mght feel they want to require
the small vessels to inplenment those. She said the 3-year
period is technol ogy based.

M5. SYLVESTER said BMPs [Best Managenent Practices] aren't going
to really change; the thought is to ensure there is latitude to
require the small vessels to conply if technol ogy devel ops. She
said this bill wultimtely sunsets, which is structured to
essentially grandfather the vessels that are currently operating
in the waters of Alaska and to control the vessel's em ssions

into the water. In 2016, she said this bill wll sunset and
those small vessels won't be allowed to discharge water in
Al aska. She explained that any vessel currently under

construction would be required to inplenent technologies and
woul dn't be covered under this plan.

Number 0988

REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE asked if the paraneter for a small
commerci al passenger vessel is from50 to 249 passengers.

M5. SYLVESTER said according to the definitions, a commercial
passenger vessel neans a vessel that carries passengers for hire
except that commercial passenger vessel does not include a
vessel that's authorized to carry fewer than 50 passengers. She
said the Act doesn't concern itself wth vessels that are
smal l er than 50 passengers, so by default it is between 50 and
249.

REPRESENTATI VE HElI NZE asked Ms. Sylvester if she knew how much
t he conpliance fee woul d be.

M5. SYLVESTER said she didn't know.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HElI NZE asked Ms. Sylvester to find out.
Nunber 1120

DAN EASTON, Director, Division of Facility Construction and
Qperation, Departnment of Environnmental Conservation, testified.
M. Easton told the commttee when DEC started talking with the
i ndustry about the concept of pulling the small vessels out of
the full coverage of the 2001 legislation, it was suggested that

the departnment | ook for four things in a bill, as follows: One,
that the bill applied only to existing vessels; all new vessels
woul d be expected to conply with the full force and effect of
the 2001 |egislation. Second, that new and existing small
vessels would conply with the registration sanpling, reporting,
and inspection requirenents. The bill includes nore than just
limts on discharge quality, it includes these other sort of
requirenents, and it is thought that the existing small vessels
could comply with those. Third, it is thought [DEC] could

devel op regul ations specifying best managenent practices (BM).
Fourth, [DEC] saw the finite end point in tine to this

arrangenent, and the bill does include a 2016 deadline. I n
summary, he said this bill includes everything that [DEC] is
| ooking for in a bill, and [DEC] does support it. He noted that

a zero fiscal note had been provided.
Nunber 1242

CAPTAIN MCHAEL JONES (ph), Director, Marine Operations,
Li ndbl ad Expeditions (LEX), testified. Captain Jones told the
commttee that he was speaking on behalf of the Al aska Small
Crui se Vessel Association, which represents 3 conpanies that
operate 10 small vessels in Al aska. Those conpani es are Cruise
West, Cipper Cruise Line/New Wrld Ship Managenent Conpany, and
Li nbl ad Expeditions. He said LEX consists of charter vessels
operating natural history voyages in Alaska since 1982. I n
1989, LEX had the opportunity to purchase the vessels it was
chartering and as such are operating the vessels Sea Lion and
Sea Bird, to date. He said those vessels are sister ships, 152
feet in length, and carry 70 passengers and 24 crewnenbers. The
shi ps operate between Sitka and Juneau taking in ports in areas
such as Tracy Arm dacier Bay National Park and Preserve, and
Pet er sbur g.

CAPTAIN JONES provided the contact information for dipper
Crui se Line/New Wrld Ship Managenent Conpany. He said dipper
Cruise Line/New Wrld Ship Managenent Conpany operates the
Yorktown Cipper, a 257 vessel that carries 138 passengers and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 3, 2004



42 crewrenbers, and the dipper Odyssey, a 300 vessel that
carries 122 passengers and 72 crewnrenbers. He said dipper
Crui se Line/New Wrld Ship Managenent Conpany has been operating
in Alaska since 1990, starting with the Yorktown Cipper. He
said Yorktown Clipper has itineraries simlar to that of LEX
vessel s, and the Cipper Odyssey operates farther out. He noted
that the bill packet contained sone econom c inpact information
from each of the conpanies. Captain Jones tal ked about LEX s
econom c inpact for 2004, the information pertaining to the
conpany's operations in Al aska, and the conpany's pronotions of
Al aska through direct nmailings and brochures. He said one
brochure goes to over half a mllion households, and another
brochure in which Alaska is featured goes to about 890,000
househol ds. He concurred with previously provided testinony.
Captai n Jones renarked:

The regulations as stated and in the term smal
passenger vessel, we don't have a lot of room to add
t hi ngs. Over the years, we've nmintained our marine
sanitation devices. In some instances holding out;
| ast year, waiting for this new technology to ideally
cone down in size to fit wthin the envelope, the
footprint of our vessels, so we could actually take
out existing equipnent and put in.

Unfortunately, the footprint of this new equipnent is
too large, and the process involves separating |iquids
and solids, which requires an inmense hol ding capacity
to get to another area to punp out or in the case of
| arger vessels where they actually dry the solids and
burn it in there incinerators, which the small vessels
just don't have ... that tine.

Nunber 1602

CAPTAIN JONES nentioned a letter entitled "Limtations on
Modi fying  Smal | Comrer ci al Passenger Vessel s" from John
Wat er house, P.E., President, Elliott Bay Design Goup, Ltd, who
hel ps to articulate the situation of the small cruise ships
trying to add new technol ogy into existing vessels.

Number 1655

BRYCE BROCKWAY, Vice President, Qper ati ons, Crui se \West,
testified. He noted that his responsibilities include the
oversight of all marine, hotel, and technical operations. M.

Brockway explained that Cruise Wst operates six snmall cruise

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 3, 2004



vessels in Al askan waters, which range in size from 78 passenger
vessels to 114 passenger vessels. He nentioned many of the
small comunities that Cruise Wst vessels visit throughout
Al aska, and he explained that Cruise Wst was founded by Chuck
West (ph) in 1946, in Fairbanks. M. Brockway explained that
M. Wst started with sonme tours out into the Arctic and over
the years it's transforned to Al aska sightseeing and then to
what it is today, Cruise West. He tal ked about the financia
inpact information contained in the bill packets that Cruise
West had provided, and explained that it is essentially simlar
to what the other two conpanies had provided. He pointed out
the Cruise West does enployee nmany Al aska residents because it
does have an "over the road operation® as well through the
Interior, and |and offices in Juneau, Ketchikan, and Petersburg.
M. Brockway said he intended to provide his testinony in person
but conflict wouldn't allow it.

Nunber 1821

CH P THOVA testified. He said he had the opportunity a couple
of years ago to sit on the cruise ship initiative as a nenber.
M. Thonma said what precipitated it is The Anchorage Daily News
and The New York Tines uncovered instances of [cruise ships]

dunping [in] "doughnut holes.™ He said [doughnut holes] are
| arge areas 3 mles from shore, and there are two or three of
them in Southeast. M. Thoma said |large ships were targeting

these areas, actually dunping waste in them because the ships
did not conmply, and they figured this was outside the real m of
state waters, and they could do so. He said legally they could,
and that brought on the actions by then-U S. Senator Frank
Mur kowski, which resulted in the cruise ship initiative. The
results of that were outstanding. It took a long tine to get
the ships tested and to identify that in nany cases, the
mai nt enance to the systens on board had not been done, he said.
Had the mai ntenance been done, these systens would have worked a
| ot better than that. He said there were very high |evels of
di schar ge.

MR. THOVA said this came about because the large cruise ships
insisted that state ferries and snall ships be included in this
program and this was an attenpt to do that. He said both the
small ships and the ferries were given a 3-year variance to do
it, which he thought was adequate at the tine. Since then it's
been stated that the new equi pnment doesn't fit and is not ready
to go, but he is not sure if that's the case, and he hadn't seen
anything to that affect yet, he said. M. Thoma said it won't
replace what's in here. He said he did appreciate the work

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 3, 2004



that's been done on HB 522 and thought it was a well-witten
bill, but to say that the ships can't feasibly conply with the
programis questionabl e.

MR. THOVA said the bill packet contains a marine engi neer report
which states that the systens cannot be added, and cannot be
readily changed; the conbination of U S. Coastguard regul ations,
licensing requirenments, and vessel construction practices mnakes
the addition of new treatnment equipnment and holding tanks
technically infeasible adding additional volune and increasing
the capacity of wastewater tanks below the main deck. He said
he would agree that adding things to small ships is a problem
but the possibility of replacing them had not been |ooked at
yet . He said he thought that's what the state should |ook at
and that is why it has a good 3-year program to review these
things, so DEC can | ook at the systens that are available to see

if sone of them can be repl aced. He said the only problem he
has with the bill is on page 3, [lines 20-24], which read in
part:

The departnent may adopt regulations to inplenent this
subsection but nmay not require an owner or operator to
retrofit a vessel solely for the purpose of waste

treatment if the retrofitting requires additiona
stability testing or relicensing by the United States
Coast Cuard.
Number 2043
MR. THOVA said he believes that this is basically a "poison pil
clause" for the bill that negates the ability to nove on,
actually get sone changes, and then retrofit sonme of these
shi ps. He remarked, "To say that whatever we do is going to
require this, we just don't know that." M. Thoma said if a
marine engineer says it is going to require relicensing or
retesting, then [the vessel operator] is "off the hook." He
suggested that it should be |ooked at. M. Thoma, directing

attention to page 6, said he thought [paragraphs] (1)-(4) were
very good. He referred to paragraphs (1) and (2), which read:

(1) the vessel is underway and proceeding at a
speed of not |less than six knots;

(2) the vessel is at |east one nautical mle

from the nearest shore, except in areas designated by
t he departnent;

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 3, 2004



MR THOWVA renar ked:

| went to the web sites for all these conpanies -

Li ndbl ad, Cruise West - all the conpanies that we're
tal king about today. Each one of these ships
specifically targets wldlife areas. They' re going
exactly to these doughnut holes; they're going to the
Brothers Island, and Frederick Sound. They' re going
to Point Adol phus, and they're going to Neka Sound off
of Sitka to look at Sea Qters. So that's what

they're doing is targeting wildlife.

MR. THOVA said he thought this [paragraph], except in those
areas designated by the departnment, should be |ooked at very
closely to see if "that can actually expand these discharge
areas." He said there really should be a two or three mle
buffer around the Brothers Island, which is a huge sea lion
rookery that whales comng in from Mexico and Hawaii go to. He
said the same [should be done] wth Point Adol phus and Neka
Sound. M. Thoma said he thought there are sone special areas
that need sone further work by DEC, and if that could be done to
"bring this bill up to snuff,”™ he was very nuch in support of
it.

Number 2115

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the big ships insisted that snal
ferries be included.

MR. THOVA said correct; into the program

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "Wo says they can insist on
anyt hi ng?"

MR THOVA said the [cruise ship industry] was a part of the
cruise ship initiative, and as far as the consensus process that
was worked up, it had a very big part in determning how [the
initiative] was going to proceed. He indicated that the cruise
ship industry was not going to cooperate unless the state's
ferry system and small ships also conplied. M. Thoma said
there was a lot of testinony given that the smaller ships
couldn't add the extra tanks. On the bigger ships it was found
that the ballast tanks could be converted into holding tanks,
and it wasn't necessary to have them all for ballasts. He said
the small ships just didn't have that, which is why they were
given three years to |l ook at further technol ogy and changes.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE  GATTO expressed concern about the words
"consensus” and "insisted" al nost being used together.

MR. THOVA said in a consensus situation, a consensus cannot be
reached unless there are sone paraneters. He said he guessed
that the paraneters were set up so that small ships and ferries
be included, and that's what everybody agreed to. M. Thonma
said "we" wanted to address all of the problens, especially, the
| arge boat's problens, which have hundreds of passengers on
board.

Nunber 2187

REPRESENTATI VE HElI NZE asked M. Thoma what he would suggest to
take the "poison out of the pill."

MR. THOVA said by taking out this clause, so the onus is not on
DEC that every tinme it cones up with an idea that it is not
going to "fly" because it's going to require a new test. He
said he thought DEC and the small ships should work
cooperatively, which he thought they are. He said he didn't
think there is any aninosity at all, and there is certainly none
on his part. M. Thoma noted that he thought [DEC and the snal
shi ps] should work nore col |l aboratively together.

Nunber 2227

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA thanked M. Thona for his work. She
asked what stability testing and relicensing enconpasses.

MR. THOVA replied that he didn't know.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked why the section was drafted this
way to say that the departnent couldn't require retrofitting if
it was going to cause additional stability testing or
relicensing. She asked about the kinds of testing and what
relicensi ng enconpasses.

CAPTAIN JONES referred to M. Witerhouse's letter, and he said
he thought M. Waterhouse did a pretty good job on the section
entitled "Regul at ory envi ronnment ", whi ch r ead [ original
punct uation provided]:

Smal | Comrerci al Passenger vessels that operate under
the U S flag are regulated by the U S Coast Guard
and carry a certificate of i nspection show ng
conpliance with all safety requirenents. To qualify

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 3, 2004



as a small passenger vessel they nust adneasure |ess
than 100 gross tons. Pl ease note that gross tonnage
is a nmeasure of internal volume and not weight. Their
design and construction are principally regulated
under Subchapter K of Chapter 46 of the Code of
Federal Regulations which applies to vessels that
carry 50 or nore passengers in overnight service or
nore than 150 passengers in day service. | f changes
are made to a vessel that increase its adneasurenents
to nore than 100 Gross Tons, the vessel is no |onger
considered a small passenger vessel by the U S. Coast
Guard and is subject to a different "license" or
certification.

CAPTAI N JONES r enar ked:

When we say additional stability testing and |icensing

that the Coast Guard ... may require, is sort of
what's encapsulated here in this ... letter is the
vessel now beconmes a different animal, a different
ship, [and] is no |onger a snmall passenger vessel. It

would then potentially beconme a |arge passenger
vessel, which would have a regul ator under subchapter
H which requires ... a whole lot nobre equipnent,
space, [and] personnel on board; the licenses is a
certification itself for the vessel and potentially
peopl e operating the vessel.

It just becones a whole different vessel, so |

think that's why, in the bill, that provision was put
there, because of the nmmjor nodification that was
di scussed earlier [it] certainly ... wasn't the

intention when we wrked with ADEC [Departnent of
Environnental Conservation] and the industry to draft
this bill that we're going to be ... forced to cut the
ship in half to stretch it lengthen it, [and] put
sponson on it.

Those sort of issues that would then kick in. ..
Virtually, what it would nman is we'd be out of

business. ... W wouldn't be able to spend the noney,
take the ship out of revenue, |ose passenger space,
and add all this. It'd be multi-million dollars to do
t hat . ... In the letter, it's pretty unfeasible to

think that you would be able to have subchapter K
vessel and operate under the existing licensing; it

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 3, 2004



woul d becone sonething different, which is not our
busi ness.

Nunber 2267

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA related her understanding that the
requirenent to do stability testing neans that the vessel has
dramatical |y changed.

CAPTAIN JONES replied yes. He said he thought stability
nodeling and different testing are things that can be done and
is sonmething that goes on within the paraneters. He renmarked:

In this bill is this sonething that's going to
drastically turn this ship into sonething that then
kicks in the mjor nodification clause wthin the
regul ati ons, which then again makes it a ... whole
di fferent vessel.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if stability testing would only be
done for sonething major rather than for m nor changes.

CAPTAIN JONES said correct. Under this context there are
different stability tests and nodels that are done all the tine.
There are stability booklets and letters for the operation of
the vessel as it is built.

MR. BROCKWAY said basically the vessels are fixed tonnage and if
anything is adjusted or taken off and replaced with a new piece
of equipnent that is the sane weight, stability testing is not
required. He said the plan is to keep | ooking at new equi pnent
as M. Thoma suggested. As long as the new equipnent used to
replace the old equipnment doesn't change the weight. He said
changi ng weights is a "whole new gane" because the wei ght change
has to be overcone by adding nore buoyancy. He said M.
Wat erhouse's letter explains what the buoyancy and stability
means to the small vessel. The large ship was able to take
"tankage" that was wused for ballasts and change them into
graywat er and bl ack water storage. He said in order for [smnal

vessels] to do that, the weight has to be overcone by adding

buoyancy, and by doing that, in nost cases, vessels will have to
add "sponsity" or be |engthened. M. Brockway noted that this
clause was put in the bill to explain that.

Number 2590

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- March 3, 2004



CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM noted that the commttee was under tine
constraints due to commtnents to hear other bills. She said it
is apparent that the conmttee has sone work to do on this bil
and that it is the last commttee of referral. She asked the
sponsor to continue to work on the issues that had been
addr essed.

Nunmber 2626

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked how often vessels go into the
doughnut hol es during a sumer and how nmuch waste i s dunped.

CAPTAIN JONES said he didn't think the doughnut hole issue is
and issue for [LEX]. He suggested the issue was brought up
because of wuntreated sewage being dunped in those areas.
Furthernore, he said [LEX s] waste is treated and can be
di scharged anywhere. Captain Jones said [LEX] does not target

doughnut holes and "we may very well, trying to get frompoint A
to point B, be in different areas, but an itinerary isn't
desi gned because of a doughnut hole." He reiterated that this

is not really an issue for these vessels. Capt ai n Jones noted
that 3 percent is the total discharge for this group of vessels
and is a factual nunber in the report. He renmarked:

To try to look at it in the case of nmy two vessels ...
in the entire Alaska season where | have 14 seven-day
trips on one vessels and 16 seven-day trips on another
vessel, |I'lIl be carrying probably just over a thousand
passengers total for the entire summer, so if you put
that against one that's doing a thousand or nore at a
tinme.

CAPTAIN JONES referred to a graph, and he said saltwater is used
to flush the toilets on the ship, which includes seawater and
graywat er. He said his vessels were using 2,000 gallons of
graywater and 3,000 gallons of black water for a 24-hour period
of tine.

CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM asked Captain Jones to provide that
information to Representative Wyhrauch's staff, and she said
she thought having that information will answer sone of these
guestions, which can be addressed during the next bill hearing.

CAPTAIN JONES said the information was already in the report
contained in the bill packets.

Number 2785

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- March 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE said 3 percent sounded like a snal
nunber, but she was trying to define what was really going on.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM said the bill would be brought up as soon as
possi bl e.

[ HB 522 was hel d over.]

HB 524- WASTE MANAGEMENT/ DI SPOSAL

Nunber 2802

CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM announced that the next order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 524, "An Act relating to the protection
of land and water from waste disposal; providing for the
regul ation of waste nanagenent; naking conform ng anendnents;
and providing for an effective date.”

ERNESTA  BALLARD, Comm ssi oner, Department of  Environnenta
Conservation (DEC), testified. She said the governor has a very
anbitious program for environnental protection and resource

devel opnent . She remarked, "They conplinent each other and the
governor expects excellence in both.”™ Conmm ssioner Ballard said
this bill is an essential piece of [DEC s] ability to support

any resource developnent program and to assure that the
environment is protected at the tine that the resources are
devel oped. She said she is proud to report to the commttee in
support of the governor's overall program that each of the
budgets that have been presented to the |egislature by Governor
Mur kowski has increased DEC s core capabilities with additions
toits permt staff.

Number 2888
COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said DEC s environmental protection role is

defined by legislation passed over many |egislative sessions
over the last 30 years that assigns clear responsibility to DEC

control water, land, and air pollution in Al aska and to also
fulfill the state's obligations under the Clean Water Act, the
Clean Air Act, and other federal |egislation, which establish a
two-tiered approach to protecting the nation's environnent. The
first tier is national air and water quality standards. The

second tier is state inplenmentation that is responsive to the
uni que needs of each state. She stated that she is a relentless
advocate of a strong state budget and a strong state program for
envi ronnent al protection and the conprehensive regulatory

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 3, 2004



program necessary to carry that out. She said the Cean Witer
Act is ultimtely the subject of HB 524 and is designed to
provide states wth the latitude to shape water pollution
control progranms to fit their own unique circunstances. The
Al aska Legislature, following the opportunity presented by the
Cl ean Water Act, has charted a course in state |law that governs
water, as well as air, energy, and environnental conservation.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said HB 524 expands the responsibilities
al ready designated by the legislature for DEC. It expands DEC s
ability to control pollution and it refocuses DEC s approach to
the conplex issues of solid and m ne wastes. She said HB 524
provi des inportant "tools"™ DEC will use to authorize its waste
di sposal activities. She said "the tools are arrayed by risk"
and there are "different tools for different risks." She said
this bill grew from [DEC s] conprehensive review of its prograns
that followed Adm nistrative Order 202, the first admnistrative
order passed by Governor Mirkowski when he first took office in
Decenber 2002. She said Administrative Oder 202 directed all
departnents of state governnent to do a conprehensive review of
their statutory authorities and their prograns to assure that
they are using state resources efficiently and effectively.
Comm ssioner Ballard said HB 524 is part of DEC s overall effort
to clarify, streamine, and adhere to federal and state
statutes.

TAPE 04-11, SIDE B

COM SSI ONER BALLARD it is DECs goal with its environnental
protection program to assure that all program conponents from
| egi sl ative budgeting and oversight to fieldwork and enforcenent
are conducted in the state, wth Al askan solutions, and
specifically addressing Al askan chall enges. She said HB 524 is
an essential piece of bringing Al askan program hone to Alaska to
assure that the priorities negotiated between the governor and
the legislature, at the time the budgets are approved, are
translated into "on the ground" progranms to protect the state's
resour ces.

Number 2950

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said [HB 524] clarifies [DEC s] "statutory
foundation,"” and she called attention to handout in the packet
provi ded by DEC. She said the handout begins by asserting that
this is a key piece of [DEC s] statutory foundation. The bill
has a zero fiscal note because it is clarification of the
departnment's authorities and does not add any additional staff

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 3, 2004



or expenses. She said [the bill] is part of a rational water
protection program that the state has not enjoyed over the 30
years as it has developed its environnmental protection program
Comm ssioner Ballard said DEC calls that program "raindrops to
oceans" and the termis used because water begins as condensate
in the air and ultimately falls to the earth as rain; it cycles
t hrough surface water, ground water, and ultimtely goes out to
the sea. She remarked, "If we don't have a conprehensive and a
rational approach to it, we're going to mss the boat." She
said if it is protected in one area and not another area, "we"
haven't done oursel ves any good.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD expl ai ned that the water is |ooked at as a
continuum from raindrops to ocean, and this bill is a key
conponent of filling in gaps that [DEC] feels it has now in its
statutory foundation to protect the water. She said it is a
bill t hat primarily gives [ DEC a set of ri sk-based
aut hori zations, which can be used to address the riskiest
inpacts to water with the "sharpest tools.” She said renarked,
"We can still by rule and therefore, with public coment, wth
opportunity for all stakeholders to participate; by rule we can
address even the nost mniml risks.” She said the bill has
five conmponents of authorization for waste disposal activities
depending on risks, which are identified in the handout by the
bull et points. This an extrenely inportant change from the
current authority DEC has. The current authority sinply
references a permt; it doesn't make clear that a permt nmay be
a different type of authorization then an individual permt wth
the name of the discharger on it, and devel oping an i ndividual
relati onship with DEC

COW SSI ONER  BALLARD said the tool DEC would wuse for the
ri skiest inpacts to water would be an individual permt in which
DEC would negotiate specific discharge requirenents for an
i ndi vi dual discharger. The next tool in reduction of risk would
be a general permt in which DEC would authorize one permt for

a nunber of simlar activities in a geographic area. Each
i ndi vi dual discharger would still need to contact DEC, and DEC
woul d still have an individual relationship with them but would

not negoti ate independent or pronul gate independent permt terns
for them

Nunber 2812
COW SSI ONER BALLARD called attention the third bullet, and she

said this tool is one that DEC is very eager to have. It's
called "permit by rule” or sonetines "regulatory rule"™ or

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 3, 2004



"perm ssion by regulation,"” she said. She said the best exanple
she can give for people who are unfamliar wth environnmental

regulations is a building permt. In sone communities, if a
person is doing sinple renodeling at a cost of |ess than $5, 000,
that individual does not need an individual permt. She said if

the renodel i ng does not include noving a bearing wall or putting
in plunmbing, the hone owner would sinply conform to "best
practices,” which are usually listed in a sheet that the city
can provide. She said this is a permt by rule, and the rule is
that person conplies with the conditions that are on the sheet
of paper, but does not need an individual permt or a building
i nspector. She said the difference between a permt by rule and
nothing is, first, [ DEC] goes through rule mking and
pronul gates the terns and conditions under which, for instance,
bil ges coul d be punped. She offered sone exanpl es.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said if [DEC] goes through rule making to
identify the best practices for a low risk activity, then it has
the opportunity for stakeholder coment, and equally inportant,
DEC woul d have the opportunity to enforce. She said if there is
a blatant violation and sonebody observes sonebody else doing
wrong and points it out to DEC, and if DEC had done nothing and
had no regulatory relationship wth the general public, it is
hel pl ess. He said if DEC has a permt by rule, it is a |low
impact risk and a very low inpact regulatory activity, but it
provides the protection [DEC] believes the environnent deserves

and needs. She turned attention to "plan approvals,” and she
said [DEC] has many places, in both statute and regulation in
state law and state code, in which plans are submtted to
vari ous agencies for review Comm ssioner Ballard said this
bill gives [DEC] specific authority to not just review, but
approve a plan when it's necessary, and that approval step
provides the control [ DEC] thinks it needs to achieve

envi ronment al protection.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said sonething extrenmely inmportant to |arge
mnes is the opportunity for DEC to issue a consolidated waste
managenent permt for conplex facilities which now require nore
than one permt. She said this is pernmt streamining, and this
admnistration had talked a |ot about it and this is an exanple
of it. She said HB 524 also allows an adm nistrative extension
of DEC permts, and she remarked, "W are good, but we're not
perfect.”" She said DEC sonetines doesn't have the staff or the
resources to renew a permt at the time the permt has expired.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said it is extrenmely inportant for DEC to
have the permts admnistratively extended so the regulated

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 3, 2004



comunity, municipalities, and industrial permt holders are not
out of conpliance because [DEC] does not have the resources to
get to the permts. She said the next issue is extrenely
i nportant to stakehol ders and devel opers because it allows [DEC]
to require proof of financial responsibility under certain waste
ci rcunst ances. She said DEC wuses proof of financi al
responsibilities in several places in DEC regulation, and it is
the tool by which DEC assures that financial resources are set
aside and dedicated to long-term clean up or nmaintenance of a
| ong-term treatnment system for a solid waste facility or a mne
waste facility. This assures citizens in the future that when
an undertaking is over and there is a residual waste system or
pile in place, that financial resources are available to assure
that it is maintained.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said the |ast major conponent of HB 524 is
nodification to the definitions of solid waste and nmunici pal
solid waste. It is inportant for DEC to be able to distinguish
bet ween rmunici pal wastes and industrial wastes. She said DEC
has different provisions in law and in regulation and it
ultimately needs the ability to allow the small nunicipal waste
facilities that are operated in Alaska's many small villages and
comunities to operate under a nuch less rigorous regulatory
regine than nore large and conplex facilities. She said this
changes to the definition nakes DEC s authority to do that
cl ear.

Number 2579

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM asked that testinony be limted to three
m nut es each.

Number 2542

MARI LYN  CROCKETT, Deputy Director, Alaska QG and Gas
Associ ation (AOCGA), testified, and stated she is in support of
HB 524. She said the bill is a very inportant and necessary
stream i ning nechanism that the departnent has proposed. The
ability to wuse the additional regulatory tools is very
inportant, not only to the applicants but to the departnent,
which has to operate with limted resources, she said. She said
the other conponent of the bill that AOCGA is very interested in
and is strongly supporting is the ability of the departnent to
adm nistratively present permts when they expire. That does
allow DEC to focus and prioritize on the authorizations and the
permts that have the higher risk, and it allows DEC to
prioritize those activities. She said it provides protection to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 3, 2004



the regulated community, as well, in the event that a permt or
an authorization that is currently held is about to expire and
there is not time to get it renewed. She said this is a
procedure that is routinely used by the federal governnent
through the Environnmental Protection Agency (EPA), and ACGA
commends the departnent for including it in this provision.

Nunber 2463

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director, Alaska Mners Association
(AMA), testified. He said AMA supports this bill, which would
make i nportant changes, specifically, the admnistrative

extension of permts, which [AVA] believes is crucial and wll
hel p both industry and DEC in that situation. He said the use
of permt by rule was well described, and he suggested it is
much sinpler for all [parties] involved to have a set of rules
"and if a person follows those rules, they are indeed in
conpliance with the law and they don't need to actually go and
apply for a permt, wait for the processing, worry about not
getting the permt on tine, and then ... they need to review the
permt." He said he believes these are all inportant changes to
the | aw, and AMA supports them

Number 2386

MYRL THOWSON, Ogan |Is So Cone, testified. He directed
attention to Section 3, subparagraph (C), and asked if this is
an exenption for coal bed nethane drilling.

COWMM SSI ONER BALLARD said this language is in existing statute
and there is no change proposed. She said subparagraph (C
refers to "exploratory drilling the produced water,"” and the
exenption was put in by the legislature a nunber of years ago.
She stated that DEC i s not proposing any change.

MR. THOWPSON asked how that exenption would affect drilling in
the Matanuska Valley with respect to [ HB 524].

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said there would be no change to the
current regulatory reginme since there is no change proposed to
statute.

MR, THOWSON said he didn't have any problem with the bill per
se, but he does have a problem with that particular exenption
due to the ongoing process in the Matanuska Vall ey.

Number 2263

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- March 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked how the proof of financial
responsibility integrate wth reclamation and reclamation
bondi ng or funds.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD nentioned that the Departnent of Natural
Resources had recently presented the commttee wth sone
statutory | anguage. She noted that it was pointed out in the
handout that DEC w Il coordinate wth a "financial assurance
vehicle," which is provided through DNR requirenents. She said
both requirenments are inportant and "their" reclanmation bonding
is extrenely inportant for the physical acts of reclamation.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD said DEC s proof of financial assurance is
inportant for the environnental protection that it seeks for
future potential waste nanagenment i ssues. She said if a mning
devel oper offers a financial instrunment which has adequate asset
depth to cover both requirenents, [DEC and DNR] will both accept
the same instrument but can't put up the same assets to pledge
for two different responsibilities.

Number 2191

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG turned attention to page 2, [paragraph
2], and he asked if that section would have been dealt with if
Fai rbanks had nmade a different determnation on its |[ast
el ection.

COWMM SSI ONER BALLARD said that |anguage will not have any i npact
on the I/M programin Fairbanks.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG turned attention to page 5, Section 4,
and he said it looks like the bill is changing who does the
forms from the EPA to the state. He asked if it was assuned
that could be done with no cost.

COWMM SSI ONER BALLARD answered in the affirmative.

Nunber 2140

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE noved to report HB 524 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 524 was reported from the

House Resources Standing Commttee.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM turned the gavel over to Co-Chair Masek.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- March 3, 2004



HB 442-Bl G GAME GUI DE BOARD & SERVI CES

Nunmber 2106

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 442, "An Act relating to the Big Gane
Comrercial Services Board and to the regulation of big gane
hunti ng services and transportation services; and providing for
an effective date."

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM noved to adopt CSHB 442, 23-1LS1398\Q
Ut ernohl e, 2/26/04, as the working docunent. There being no
objection, CSHB 442, version Q was adopted by the House
Resources Standing Committee.

CO- CHAI R MASEK announced the bill will be held in commttee.
ADJ OQURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:57 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 3, 2004



